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Tl taught by pain
“Men really know not what good water’s worth.”
—Lorp ByROX.

It was men taught by pain to know the worth of good
water who founded San Antonio.

Bitter experience with the parched plains of a semi-arid
Jland gave them a keen appreciation of the bounty of Nature
in providing the springs at the head of the San Antonio
river and in San Pedro park.

The first mission settlements were built on the banks of
the running streams issuing from these springs and in the
intervening two hundred years this water supply has never
tailed. Tt has been a commanding foree in the growth of
those missionary outposts into the largest and most beautiful
ity in the nation’s largest state.

To aequaint our stockholders, our consumers and all
athers interested with the story of the development of that
primitive water supply and its efficient distribution to the
consumers of today, this book is written. An effort has
been made to present this historical data without loss of the
intense human interest as well as to observe accuraey so that
it may be used as a veference by students and others.

THE WATER SUPPLY COMPANY
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Q9 N these days of convenience in the matter of obtaining water for
every use it is difficult to realize that less than a century ago
San Antonio’s only system of water distribution was by “‘aguadores,”’
Mexicans who dipped water in buckets from the river and from San Pedro
Creek and carried these buckets pendant from yokes about their shoulders
to the houses in which their customers lived.

The two elear running streams which issued from bubbling springs
supplied the early settlements with water in this manner until growth and
irrigation needs made necessary a more efficient system of distribution
Jess dependant upon labor. The result was the building of a number of
“geequias’’ or ditches which carvied water by gravity from the back-
waters of dams ereeted in the streams. These ‘‘acequias’ supplied water
for household use as well as irrigation in all parts of the settlements and
returned the unnsed water to the river hefore it passed the Missions on
the South Loop in compliance with grants which gave the Missions water
rights upon the river.

Tn a general way the ‘‘acequias’ and their branches supplied all of
that part of the present city included in the business section and the older,
close-in residence districts. They solved the problems of the time but as
early as 1840 an incident occurred which foretold the passing of the
ditehes and pointed the need for a system of distribution which would
prevent contamination of the supply.

The incident mentioned is best told in the language of Mrs. M. A
Maverick, a pioneer San Antonian, as written in her Memoirs for private
cireulation. Mrs. Maverick wrote:

““An ececentrie character of those days was a Doctor

Weidemann * * # * a Russian scholar and naturalist and

an excellent physician and surgeon. He was a highly
cultivated man and spoke many languages. He lived on the old Chavez
place on Aeequia street (now Main avenue). I remember that on the night
of the Indian fight of March 19, 1840, I visited Mrs. Higginbotham.
While T was there Dr. Weidemann came up to her grated front window
and placed a severed Indian head upon the sill.  The good doctor bowed
courteonsly, and saying: ‘With your permission, madam’ disappeared.
Presently he returned with another bloody head, when he explained to us
that he examined all the dead Indians and had selected these heads, male
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and female, for the skulls as well as two entire bodies, to preserve as
skeletons.

“‘He said. ‘T have been longing exceedingly to secure such specimens,
and now ladies, T must get a cart to take them home.” Dr., Weidemann
had taken an active part in the fight and done good service mounted on
hie fine horse, and now he was all begrimed, bloody and dirty—the result
of his labors as warrior, surgeon and scientist. He soon returned with
the cart loaded with his magnificent specimens, took the two heads from
the window and departed * * * ¥

“That night Doetor Weidmann stewed the bodies in a soap boiler
and when the flesh was completely dessicated, emptied the cauldron into
the acequia. Now this diteh supplied the drinking water generally for the
town it being understood that the river and San Pedro creck were reserv-
ed for bathing and washing. There was a city ordinance to this effeet
coupled with a heavy fine,

“*On the twenty-first it dawned upon the dwellers upon the banks of
the diteh that the doctor had defiled the drinking water and that prob-
ably they had taken in particles of Indian in their fluid. The people,
very properly, gathered in indignation and a mob rushed to the mayor’s
office. The men talked in loud and excited tones and the women shrieked
and cried * * * *. Many thought they were poisoned and would die.
Doctor Weidemann was arrested and brought to trial.  The people over-
whelmed him with abuse and called him ‘diablo,’ ‘demonio,’ ‘sin verguen-
2a' and o forth. He took it all calmly, assured them the Indians had
all sailed by in the night, paid his fine and went away laughing.”

Tt is highly probable that the eseapade of Doctor Weidemann started

agitation in San Antonio for a method of water distribution which would
do away with the possibility of contamination but it was not until a pub-
lic ealamity occurred—the cholera epidemic of 1866—that ways and
means were actually sought for delivering water into the homes in a
sanitary manner.
Many schemes were advanced. disenssed and disearded.
Agitation waxed and waned, the more progressive citizens
in 1887 veviving it cach time with new vigor until in 1873 a dei-
inite attempt was made to organize a company and build a water works
system. George M. Maverick was at the head of this movement but it failed
of accomplishment as did another in 1875 of which H. 1B, Adams was the
head.

In April, 1877, the city gave a contract to J. B. LaCoste and as-
sociates for supplying the eity with water from the head of the river. The
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contract stipulated that work was to be finished within fifteen months
from and after April 3, 1877, a provision that Mr. LaCoste and his com-
pany carried out to the letter.

A reservoir was construeted on the hill at the eastern end of Mahncke
park which is still in existence and eapable of use. Near the head of the
river a raceway was built across one of the large bends in the stream to a
pumping plant which was located (parts of the stone end of the race-
way may still be seen) at what is now the Lambert hathing beach in
Brackenridge Park. The *‘drop’’ from the river level at the upper end
of the raceway to the pumping plant location was some eight or ten feet
and the water falling from the end of the raceway had sufficient foree
to operate a large turbine which was direetly eonneeted by gears fo the
plunger of a large pump. This pump forced the water to the reservoir
from which it was distributed by gravity through the company’s mains.

The waterworks was aceepted by the city July 5. 1878, and the La
Coste company prepared to rcap the just returns from its enterprise and
publie-spirited service. To the dismay of the officers and stockholders
it was found a most difficult task to overcome the prejudice of the day
against new methods and to educate a people reluctant about changing
old habits. Where hundreds of consumers were expected tens were the
realization and although there is no record to show this definitely it is
probable that the struggle was too great for the faith of Mr, LaCoste and
his associates or the finaneial burden became too heavy and they disposed
of their interests to a company headed by George W. Brackenridge in 1883.
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It is worthy of note that Mr. Brackenridge was one of
Shared Prevailing those who at first doubted the practicability of the
Opinion waterworks system and its desirability as an investment
and vet to him, in after years and almost unaided, is due the eredit for
its success. In the book ‘‘San Antonio de Bexar,”’ a historical sketch
written and published by William Corner in 1890, appears the following
} statement of Mr. Brackenridge:

“The Water Works were constructed in 1877, at a time when the
ity was unwilling or unable to do anything and the citizens would have
nothing to do with the scheme, giving it neither countenance or eredit,
believing that it would be a great advantage to the city and of little
benefit to the stockholders.

““These were, T believe, the views held by very nearly all the ecitizens
including myself.

““Af present the company is completing what the stockholders hope
will be the last large addition in the plant necessary to be made during
the continuance of the contract with the city. I can truly say that, so
1 far, they have received less interest on the investment than any citizen
in Qan Antonio would be willing to accept, even upon the most undoubted
and infallible investment. There has been paid them less than two per
cent per annum upon the amount invested to the present time.

“Tor the first seven years the officers contented themselves to work
without salaries. T traveled over the country at my own expense to
make contracts for pipe and material.”

When Mr. Brackenridge had caught the vision. however. his con-
version was complete and his faith in the projeet became unbounded.
He had taken an engineering course at Harvard University and in ad-
dition to the trips he made for the company at his own expense he gave
his engineering services to the company without charge over a period of
vears when the work was most diffieult and bore the greatest influence
1 on the future of the company. The skill which he brought to bear is

best attested by the remark made by one of the present engineers of the

location of a plant could be changed to give betfer service.”’
Further evidence of Mr, Brackenridge's change of views
Changes Front about the company is given by the fact that he, as a banker,
Completely advaneed money to the LaCoste company and took some
stock in it even before his purchase. Then in another paragraph in
Corner’s “‘San Antonio de Bexar’’ it is related:
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“‘The works took a new lease of life under Mr. Brackenridge. With
a serene faith in the future of the city he has yearly put and advised his
company to put thousands upon thousands of dollars underground until
today (1890) the city has a vast network of iron pipes.”

Mr. Brackenridge’s presideney of the Water Works Company was
continuous to the time of its sale in 1906 with the exception of one very
short period and he brought to the position an equipment of knowledge
and skill seldom found in one man. Besides his engineering course at
Harvard Mr. Brackenridge took a law degree and then entering com-
mercial life in San Antonio devoted his time to the banking business
building up the San Antonio National Bank and the San Antonio Loan &
Trust Company to be two of the strongest financial institutions in the
Southwest. With his engineering and legal knowledge and his finanecial
standing he was peculiarly fitted to bring the struggling Water Works
Company through the vears of its greatest stress and to build it into the
valuable property it is today.

When Mr. LaCoste and his associates sold the plant San Antonio was

only emerging from the village class and the market for water was lim-
ited to the few progressive citizens who recognized the desirability of
sanitary handling of the city’s water supply and who were able to pay
for eonnections. The consumption was limited in another manner, in that
household fixtures as known and in common use today were vet to be
put upon the market. As a rule the only connection made by the indiv-
idual consumer was a tap in the yard from which the water was drawn
for all household uses. The same was true of business houses.
Truly the conditions and the outlook were not such as to
inspire great confidence in the suceess of the company
but Mr. Brackenridge, with the foresightedness for which
he was noted among those who knew him hest, looked far into the future
and felt himself justified in going ahead as if assured of maximum con-
sumption of water from a much larger city. Ie foresaw the possibility
of the original plant at Lambert Bach hecoming inadequate to fill the
¢ity’s needs in the near future and also the possibility that lowering of
the water head in the artesian basin might curtail the supply from this
plant. To meet those possibilities he purchased property along the river
south of the old plant and constructed a new raceway with its lower
end just west of the present park plant of the Water Supply Company.
The stone walls of the plant he built there may still be seen near the put-
ting green of hole No. 13 on the municipal golf links in Brackenridge
Park. This plant also was equipped with a turbine and direct connection
pump.

0Old Plant Ruins

Remain
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Even before events had justified his judgment Mr. Brackenridge had
used his private means to obtain control of large acreage along the banks
of the river south of his home which at that time was located on the
ground now oecupied by the College of the Incarnate Word. The value
of this property and the water rights that went with it became apparent
with the further development of the Water Works Company and in 1883
it was taken over by the company. In the next five vears growth of the
city and consequent extension of the company’s mains forced the instal-
lation of a steam turbine pump at the ““lower’ plant, the water turbine
pump being continued however as an auxiliary.

From his observations of the fluetuating ‘“head’™ of the artesian basin
and his study of the source of this artesian supply Mr. Brackenridge
became convinced in 1888 that there was danger of the complete failure
of the river as a source of supply following any long period of drought
and he drilled a well near the reservoir as a reserve. This well did not
flow and its capacity was small. Tt also was too deep to pump success-
fully and was abandoned.

Still intent upon getting a new source of supply Mr. Brackenridge
purchased property on Market street in the belief that he could strike
the artesian basin at a lower level. An eight-inch well was sunk there
in 1891 and at a depth of 890 feet the artesian water was struck with so
much_ pressure that it flowed out of a pipe fifteen or twenty feet high
and blew out pieces of rock ‘‘as large as a man’s head’’ according to wit-
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nesses of its eompletion. This well flowed 3,000,000 gallons per day and
was proof positive of the soundness of Mr. Brackenridge's reasoning. It
was quickly followed by other wells twelve inches in diameter and in 1895
steam pumps were installed for direct distribution of the water through
mains radiating from the plant and serving the district south of Houston
street where the pressurc had been inadequate from the reservoir supply.
The Market Street plant continues in use today the only changes
being more modern pumping machinery.
In addition to the economic reasons for seeking an artesian
supply of water for the City the importanee of such sup-
Gity Health ply to the health of the City was also considered by Mr.
Brackenridge. Shortly before the acquisition of the property on Market
Street and the drilling of the well thereon, the cholera had broken out
in Russia and was ravaging parts of that eountry. Doctor Ferd. Herff,
now deceased, was a lifetime friend of Mr. Brackenridge's and was
interested with him in a number of enterprises, including the water works.
Doctor Herff was not only a remarkable physician and surgeon but was
also a scientist and possessed of a wonderful fund of information on epide-
mics, their causes and prevention. He fully realized the danger to the
health of the community in water taken from the river or the springs and
pumped into open veservoirs for gravity distribution to consumers. He
therefore urged upon Mr. Brackenridge the importance of seeuring an
absolutely pure artesian water supply which when obtained and used to
the exclusion of the surface water supply by the inhabitants of the City
would give practieally complete protection against certain germ diseases
or at least against any epidemic from any of such diseases.

The company also continued development work near the head of the
river several wells being bored at the “‘lower’ station and several more
steam pumps being added to the plant equipment. A 12-inch well also
was drilled just east of what is now Lamhert beach for the purpose of
further utilizing the turbine pumps.

In the period from 1880 to 1900 the company had enjoyed a steady
growth as San Antonio emerged from the village class and the inhab-
itants began more and more to aceept innovations as a matter of course.
In the last five years of this period San Antonio installed its first sewer
system and with the installation of plumbing in houses, which hitherto
had depended upon cesspools, eame a greatly increased consumption of
water.

Sees Danger To

In 1900 San Antonio’s population was 53,321, an increase from
37,673 in 1890 which in turn was an increase over the 20,000 of 1880.
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After 1900 came a period of rapid development in three ways cach of
which helped to inercase the consumption of water and placed a greater
burden upon the distributing system of the Water Works Company.
First was the development of modern plumbing with its convenient house-
hold fixtures, bathtubs and indoor toilets. Second was the introduetion
of shrub and tree planting and better care of lawns. Third was a rapid
orowth of the eity itself with the opening of new additions which brought
the necessity of more mains and more service connections. So rapid was
this orowth that in 1910 San Antonio had almost doubled her popula-
tion. the census for that year showing 96,641 residents in the city.

In the meantime two important events had taken place in
- the life of the Water Works Company and the City. In

City 1899 the compary deeded to the city of San Antonio all
of the magnifieent wooded traet of land which it had acquired along the
banks near the head of the river reserving only a strip fronting on what
is now Broadwav. The deed stipulated that the ecity should retain title
as long as the land was maintained for park puiposes and it also reserved
all water rights in the park including the erection of such dams, lakes, etc.,
“*as may be useful to it for supplying water to the city and its inhabitants
or for irrigation purposes.”’ A similar deed was given to the land em-
braeced in Mahncke Park.

The importance ta the company of this transfer lies with its retention
of the water rights which subsequent events have proved to be of almost
inestimable value in that it affords one of the few accesses at low level
in that section to the artesion water pool under the city. Its importance
to the city is shown in the present beauty of Brackenridge Park which
has won national fame.

The second important event was the sale of the company in the latter
part of 1905 to George J. Kobusch of St. Louis, marking the passing of the
water works for the first time from San Antonio control.

As in all of the history of the water company from its inception
there is human interest in the manner by which this sale came about. Mr.
Brackenridge at various times in the spring of 1905 had made to one of
his employes an offer to sell the property urging the employe to get the
money together and buy it. Knowing that Mr. Brackenridge knew his
very limited financial resources this employe was at first inclined to treat
the matter as a joke but after the offer had heen renewed several times
he spoke of it to a friend who was planning a trip to Chicago and who
was in the confidence of moneyed men in the Windy City. A thirty days|
verbal option was arranged and the friend journeyed to Chicago only to
be disappointed by his inability to interest the men he had gone to see. |
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It was folowing this disappointment that Fate played one
ate Takes A of those little tricks which so often affect the destinies of
Hand men and affairs, On his return trip to San Antonio the
prospective promoter stopped off in St. Louis and by chance met a cousin
he had not seen for some vears. The meeting resulted in an invitation to
dinner and his introduction there to the husband of the cousin who chanced
to be the private secretary of George J. Kobusch. a power in St. Louis
finaneial cireles of that day. The tale of the unsuecessful trip to Chicago
was told at the dinner table and the cousin’s hushand became interested.
Arrangements were made for the San Antonio promoter to stay over a
day and the financier was told by his secretary of the opportunity to buy
the San Antonio Water Works company. Quick action followed and
before nightfall the San Antonian had found his buyver and had $100.000
in cash with which to bind the option.

‘Tt is related with a c¢huekle by the former employe of Mr. Bracken-
ridge that when the latter was faced with the aetual prospeet of transfer-
ring the property which he had built from its infaney and which he had
regarded with almost a father’s Jove, he was reluctant to go through
with the deal. He had eiven his word, however. and that was sacred
with him.

““He made them bring that $100,000 to San Antonio though and

deposit it in the San Antonio National Bank hefore he would go ahead
and execute the option.”” said the former employe with an appreciative

grin.

The deal was carried through and in the following vear, 1906, the
San Antonio Water Supply company was organized with Mr. Kobusch
as the majority stockholder. A short time later negotiations were opened
by the Mississippi Valley Trust Company of St. Louis, handling Mr.
Kohuseh’s affairs. with a Belgian svndieate in Antwerp and in 1909
a deal was closed by which the Belgian eapitalists acquired 90 per cent
of the stock and hegan operations under the name Compagnie des Eaux
de San Antonio. with the Misvissippi Vallex Trust company acting as

agent for the syndicate.

Coineident with the purchase by the Belgian syndicate another*period
of rapid growth opened in San Antonio which resulted in the city’s
almost doubling its population again within ten years. In 1910 the popul-
‘ation was 96,641 and in 1920 the government census showed more than
161,000 residents. This period saw the opening of many suburban ad-
ditions to the city with a consequent extension of the water distribut-
ing system and development of the supply. The engineer sent to San
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Antonio in 1913 by the Mississippi Valley Trust eompany found only one
plant in operation, the one on Market Street, and confronted by the neces-
sitv of rapid action toward getting a further supply he considered first
a plan to drill wells on the Salado Creek east of Fort Sam Houston. A
study of the economics of that possible supply convinced him that the
upper reaches of the San Antonio river in Brackenridge Park offered a
hetter opportunity and in 1914 work was started on the plant in the
the park using four wells whieh had been drilled previously and three
new ones, the total capacity being 20,000,000 gallons of water daily. The
plant was put in operation in June, 1915 and connected with the mains
in the high pressure distriet of the cify.

Gtermany’'s invasion of Belgium in 1914 injected a new

World War Has  jepent into the progress of the Water company for as a

An Effect result of the cutting off of the Belgian owners from
communication with their agents in this country the money which would
have gone to them in interest and dividends had to be placed in the com-
pany surplus and became available for development work.

With two big plants in operation, one in the northern end of the
eity and another in almost the business center, the company saw the need
for and strategic advantage of a third plant in the southern section and
in 1918 succeeded in drilling two unusually good ten-inch wells on the
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Wickes tract purchased years before by Mr. Brackenridge and on which
he had failed in several attempts to get welle. This failure probably
was due to the driller’s error in going through the pervious rock
strueture in which the artesian water lies.

The third plant was placed in operation in 1922 with an electrically
driven centrifugal pump of 6,000,000 gallons eapacity on the wells which
are of 8,000,000 gallons capacity per day. It is used largely as an auxil-
iary to the other plants during the peak load periods in the summer.

This, however, is getting a little ahead of the story for in 1918 came
a combination of cirecumstances which later brought about transfer of the
company and once again placed it entirely in the control of San Antonio
capital. After the signing of the armistice which ended the war the
Belgian owners of the company found themselves in urgent need of money
for rebuilding projects in their native land. The Belgian frane had fal-
len to a low rate of exchange and it was possible for American investors
to purchase the frane at this low price and realize a profit in the transfer
while at the same time the Belgians would receive a proportionately larger
number of franes for their stock.

This set of eircumstances resulted in the formation of a syndicate of
San Antonians which in January 1920 purchased two thirds of the stock
of the Belgian syndicate. The members of this syndicate were E. B.
Chandler, J. H. Lapham, W. C. Rigsby, Robert J. Harding, A. S. Gage,
W. K. Ewing, J. H. Kekernot, H. L. Kokernot, John Molesworth, Charles
Schreiner, Jr., Gus Giesecke and J. N. Bennett, Jr.

The remaining one-third of the stock of the Belgians was taken over

by the Mississippi Valley Trust company and later was ahsorbed by San
Antonio investors.
Thus has been traced the romantic history of the water
supply company in San Antonio from the humble begin-
ning in 1877 to the princely property of today which
furnishes this largest eity in Texas with an abundance of the purest water
in the world at the lowest rates. Always and sometimes under great dif-
ficulty the company has kept pace with the growth of the eity which
has been remarkable in its rapidity. Today the company is equipped to
take care of the needs of an even larger city and it is a faet in which
the company takes great pride that consumers never have just tause to
complain of the service.

With its three plants in a straight line from north to south in the eity
at the points where the artesian supply is easiest available and from which
distribution is most economical, the San Antonio Water Supply Com-
pany has a total well capacity of almost 75,000,000 gallons of water per
day. The daily consumption of water in San Antonio averages 23,000,000
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gallons per day and the peak eonsumption in summer runs as high as
55,000,000 gallons per day. There are 34,500 consumers with connections
on the 425 miles of mains the company has construeted at this time (1924)
in the citv and its additions.

At the Market Street plant the well supply is 43,000,000 gallons per
day but only 20.000.000 gallons are pumped into the mains by the big
Allis-Chalmers vertical, triple expansion, steam pumping engines leaving
a reserve of 23,000,000 gallons per day. At the Brackenridge Park station
another 20,000,000 gallons per day is available for pumping into the high
pressure mains by the steam turbine equipment there and at the plant in the
southern part of the city the electrically driven pump has a capacity of
6.000.000 gallons on a well eapacity of 8,000,000 gallons. A feature of
this arrangement of the stations aside from distribution economies is the
balancing of the load by the big pumps at the Market Street station. The
pumps at the other two stations may be run at a uniform rate and
inequalities in the load be taken up by the powerful triple expansion
engines in the Market Street plant.

It is scen that San Antonio is blessed with an economically distribut-
ed and abundant supply of pure artesian water furnished by a company
with a history as romantic as that of the city itself. The source of that
supply, treated in the following chapter, is a subject of parallel interest
and shows the benign part that Nature has taken in providing the city
with water that never sees the light of day from the time it falls as rain
and is absorbed into the earth until it runs from the tap in home or busi-
ness place.




